ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 15, 2012
8:04 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 194

"An Act providing for a school inprovenent and revitalization
procedure in the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent;
establishing advisory councils for school inprovenent; and

requiring reports to the legislature.™
- HEARD AND HELD
SENATE BI LL NO 169
“"AN ACT PROVIDING FOR EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG FOR DI STANCE DELI VERY
COURSES OFFERED BY A SCHOOL DI STRI CT. "
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 194

SHORT TI TLE:. PROCEDURES FOR LOW PERFORM NG SCHOOLS
SPONSOR(s) : EDUCATI ON

02/ 08/ 12 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 08/ 12 (S) EDC, FIN

02/ 13/ 12 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 13/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 13/ 12 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 15/ 12 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 15, 2012



MURRAY RI CHVOND, St af f

Senat or Joe Thonas

Co- Al de

Senate Education Standing Committee

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information on changes made to SB
194 and answered questi ons.

BARB ANGAI AK, Presi dent

Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati on- Al aska
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 194.

CARL ROCSE, Executive Director
Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 194.

BYRON CHARLES, representing hinself
Ket chi kan, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not state a position on SB 194.

LES MORSE, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 194.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:04: 00 AM

COCHAIR JOE THOVAS called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:04 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Stevens, Davis, Co-Chair Myer and
Co- Chair Thonas.

SB 194- PROCEDURES FOR LOW PERFORM NG SCHOCLS

8:04: 27 AM

CO- CHAI R THOVAS announced the continued consideration of SB 194.
He noted that many states have struggled with the | ow perform ng
school s and sone states had initiated active plans to help their
schools. He said the intent of this bill was a collaborative
effort to work with the comunity, district and the Departnent
of Education and Early Development (DEED) to nmake sure |ow

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- February 15, 2012



perform ng schools get back on track. He said the state cannot
afford to stand idly by and allow lowperformng districts to
struggl e.

8:05: 52 AM

MURRAY RICHMOND, staff to Senator Joe Thomas, Alaska State
Legislature, and co-aide to the Senate Education Standing
Commttee, said changes were nmade since the last conmttee
meeting. He noted that Senator French requested clarification in
termnology by adding the phrase "degrees of" to provide
nmeasurenent nmeans to audit activities pertaining to high
st andar ds, col |l aboration, famly involvement and conmunity
i nvol venent. He said the changes included a focus on schools
rather than districts and allow ng collaborative changes to be
optional rather than nmandatory.

8. 08: 28 AM

He enphasized that governance councils would function on an
advi sory capacity and the nane had been changed from "governance
council"™ to "revitalization advisory council”™ (RAC). He noted
that the nunber of school board nenbers serving on RAC woul d be
increased from one to three nenbers. He said a change was al so
made to allow a school board to partially accept RAC
reconmendat i ons.

8:11: 33 AM

He said the bill takes a proactive stance towards | ow performng
school s, defines support roles and offers continual help for the
bottom 3 percent. He said DEED would be provided with specific
responsibilities and audit paraneters. He said RAC would provide
teachers, principals and parents wth input to help their
schools. He said schools would have every opportunity to make
changes before an intervention becomes necessary.

8:13: 55 AM
CO- CHAIR MEYER asked how effective advisory councils were in
wor ki ng with school boards in other states.

MR. RICHMOND answered that Connecticut and Georgia had shown
success wth advisory councils. He noted that in Al aska,
Kodi ak' s advi sory council had worked very well in their schools.
He said advisory councils were successful when school boards
accepted its defined role and listened to its recomrendati ons.

8:16: 03 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- February 15, 2012



CO- CHAIR MEYER noted that school board nenbers could face not
being reelected if they do not listen to an advisory council's
reconmendat i ons.

MR RI CHVOND answer ed correct.

8:16: 59 AM
BARB ANGAI AK, President, National Education Association-Al aska
( NEA- Al aska), Juneau, said the bill called for councils to be

set up to provide input and advice from parents, teachers,
adm ni strators and school board nenbers. She said el ected school
board authority and responsibility would not be taken away. She
recommended that DEED include National Board Certification (NBC)
for teachers.

8:20:43 AM
CO CHAIR THOVAS comrented that school boards were made up of
comunity nenbers and the bill woul d broaden representation.

SENATOR FRENCH asked what NEA-Al aska's position was on offering
a $5000 incentive to attract highly qualified teachers and
princi pal s.

M5. ANGAI AK answered that NEA-Alaska was in support and
encouraged NBC for teachers.

8:22:28 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked if NBC was required for "highly qualified"
consi deration and $5000 grant eligibility.

M5. ANGAI AK answered that she did not know. She noted that NEA-
Al aska was convinced that the rigorous standards for achieving
NBC woul d provide for the highest quality of teacher.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if NEA-Alaska had a problem with RAC
participating in the school board's responsibility to hire
pri nci pal s.

8:.24.15 AM

M5. ANGAI AK answered that a struggling school may need to | ook
at a different nethod for making sure the very best person was
hi r ed.

SENATOR STEVENS asked for «clarification regarding RAC being
i nvolved in principal hiring.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- February 15, 2012



MR RICHVOND responded that the Fairbanks School District
involved their conmunity in the principal hiring process, but
the school board was ultimately responsible for hiring. He
addressed Senator French's question regarding the definition of
a "highly qualified" teacher and said the bill allowed DEED to
make that designation

CO CHAIR THOVAS commented that the intent was not to usurp the
school board's authority to hire principals or dictate that only
NBC t eachers were considered "highly qualified."

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the bill would only pay a $5000 grant to
attract new teachers or be used for teachers already inside the
district.

8:26:38 AM

MR. RICHVOND answered that the grant would be used to attract
new teachers. He said there could be a problem for teachers who
were al ready serving and changes woul d be addressed w th DEED.

SENATOR FRENCH asked who had the authority to award the $5000
grant.

MR. RI CHVOND answered that DEED would work with the school board
and superintendent to address how teacher attraction grants
woul d be awar ded.

8:.28:51 AM

CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Association of Alaska School
Boards (AASB), Juneau, said school board nenbers were people who
contributed to communities and provided a trenendous voluntary

service. He said school board nenbers dispersed over $1 billion
per year and were the only people authorized to spend that
money. He said the bill addressed |low performng schools by

provi di ng added assi stance and direction.

8:31:20 AM
MR. ROSE said changing the governance council to RAC was
appr eci at ed. He advi sed limting school board menber

participation to avoid a quorum within RAC. He said the bill
aut horized community col |l aboration and may satisfy another piece
of legislation in the Al aska House of Representatives that takes
issue with the school intervention process.

8:34: 38 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- February 15, 2012



CO CHAI R MEYER asked how effective RAC would be in a rural area.
He comrented that rural school districts had a limted pool of
peopl e to select from

MR. ROSE answered that school districts in the Rural Educational
Attendance Area were required by law to have advisory boards in
pl ace. He said the bill would change how RAC nenbers were chosen
in addition to expanding advisory responsibilities. He said the
greatest |ogistical challenge cane from dealing wth vast areas
with no road access. He said adding a provision to allow |ess
RAC nenbers was inportant to rural communities.

8:38: 58 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS commented that the intent was not to add nore
bureaucracy, but to create sonething that was helpful and
br ought peopl e toget her.

SENATOR STEVENS said he appreciated the change to RAC. He
addressed the requirenent for DEED to decide changes to be nmade
if a school board and RAC would not be in agreenent. He asked if
AASB had concerns if DEED was given the authority to dictate
changes.

8:41: 35 AM

MR. ROSE answered that a di sagreenent should be dictated through
the school board election or recall process. He noted that a
school board's extensive duties permtted the body to be sued
He said RAC functioned in an advisory capacity and |anguage in
the bill involving DEED was not necessary.

8:.43:16 AM

BYRON CHARLES, representing hinself, Ket chi kan, said new
technol ogy would play an inportant role for increasing student
interest in school.

SENATOR DAVI S said she would like to receive input from DEED.

8:46: 25 AM

LES MORSE, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnent, Juneau, said the departnment felt strongly
that comrunities should be engaged in their schools. He said he
did not see anything in the bill that was not workable. He said
the fiscal note was constructed to allow for adjustnents.

8:48: 09 AM

MR. MORSE addressed Senator French's question regarding the new
teacher grant. He said DEED envisioned a process where RAC woul d

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- February 15, 2012



wite for a grant to do something innovative to attract
teachers. He said grant incentives could be in the form of a
bonus, loan or professional devel opnment support. He said DEED
had been working on operational |ogistics and would work wth
the conmttee to make all of the pieces work.

CO CHAI R THOVAS asked if there was anything in the bill that was
bot her sonme to DEED

MR. MORSE answered that using the term "highly qualified" to
descri be teaching candidates was a |egal term and suggested that
anot her term be used.

8:50: 15 AM
SENATOR DAVI S asked if DEED supported SB 194.

MR. MORSE answered that the bill was in draft form and a
statenent in support would be premature.

SENATOR STEVENS commented that electing school boards was an
inmportant part of a denocracy and the election process was
ingrained in our society. He said he was concerned that an
unel ected departnent could trunp the elected school board. He
said he liked the RAC concept to assist |ow performng schools
and advised being very careful of tranpling on the
responsibilities of elected officials.

8:53: 51 AM
CO CHAIR THOVAS said he agreed that legally they were treading
on an area that was not purview to change.

8:54: 35 AM
CO- CHAI R THOVAS said SB 194 would be held in commttee.

8:56: 29 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Co- Chai r Thomas adjourned the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting at 8:56 a. m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 15, 2012



